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Summary Statement (in thousands, except share data)

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

Total revenues $ 186,573 $ 179,507 $ 161,507

Gross profit $   79,453 $   77,808 $   67,497

Income from operations $   42,454 $  50,412 $   41,774

Net income $   40,974 $  40,304 $   32,486

Earnings per share, diluted $       1.01 $       0.99 $       0.81

Income before goodwill 
impairment and equity 
investment losses

$   40,974 $  40,338 $   32,627

Earnings per share, diluted, before 
goodwill impairment and equity 
investment losses

$       1.01 $       0.99 $       0.82

Weighted average number of 
shares outstanding, diluted

40,469 40,797 39,917

At Year End (in thousands, except headcount and margin data)

2004 2003 2002

Cash and cash equivalents 
(in millions)

$    109 $    103 $    125

Short-term investments 
(in millions)

$      59 $      34 $      16

Working capital 
(in millions)

$    171 $    142 $    146

Global headcount 4,527 3,861 2,794

Gross margin 42.6% 43.3% 41.8%

Financial Highlights

Company Profile
Syntel (NASDAQ: SYNT) is a global applications management company that 

delivers real-world technology solutions to a roster of Global 2000 clients. 

Founded in Troy, Michigan in 1980, today Syntel has more than 4,500 

employees operating out of offices throughout the U.S., Europe, and Asia. 

We maximize technology investments for our clients by employing a global 

delivery model that enables enhanced speed-to-market, cost reduction, 

increased quality and unlimited scalability. Syntel employees embody our 

tagline: Consider IT Done
®
.
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To Our Shareholders, Partners 
and Colleagues:
Syntel’s legacy has been one of profound business transitions – from our start in 
1980 as a technology staffi ng company in Troy, Michigan to our place today as 
a global information technology solutions fi rm with more than 4,500 employees 
in 27 offi ces worldwide.  Through the years, Syntel has continued to reinvent 
itself to better service the evolving needs of our clients. In 2004, our team made 
strong progress toward our transition into one of the leading providers of global 
IT solutions to Global 2000 corporations.  

Aggressive Investments Fuel Top-line Growth.

To help promote top-line revenue acceleration, Syntel stepped up its investments 
in the areas of global facilities, enhanced breadth/depth of service offerings and 
sales and marketing.  During the year, Syntel opened a new Global Development 
Center in Chennai, India as well as a new BPO center in Mumbai, India. We made 
signifi cant progress on Phase I of our 40-acre Technology Campus in Pune, India. 
We expect this center to be ready by late summer 2005.  Syntel also purchased 
a 27-acre parcel in Chennai for a future tech campus.  With an eye toward 
enhancing our service offerings in 2004, Syntel launched a new global testing 
service – SynAppTest™ – as well as a new security and regulatory solution – SSN 
Secure™, which offers a solution to privacy protection in the use of Social Security 
Numbers. We also hired a host of vertical industry and technology domain 
experts. We brought an increased focus on enhancing our sales management 
efforts with the promotion of Keshav Murugesh to Chief Operating Offi cer and 
Vinod Swami to Vice President of Global Sales. We also launched our Client 
Partner Program in early 2004 to drive increased value for both our clients and 
Syntel. In all, Syntel’s capital expenditure investments increased by 200 percent 
during the year and SG&A investments grew by 35 percent.  I am confi dent these 
steps position Syntel to grow more aggressively going forward.

Focus on Customer Satisfaction Delivers Record Results.  

In 2004, our focus on our Applications Outsourcing business segment yielded 
good results as we set a record of $186.6 million in total revenues, a new high 
in our 24-year history. Applications Outsourcing now accounts for more than 76 
percent of total revenues.  We continue to generate gross and operating margin 
levels that are among the industry’s best.

During the year, Syntel also continued to transition our business to better leverage 
global capacity. By the close of 2004, we delivered more than 60 percent of our 
services from our India-based centers.  We anticipate delivering more than 70 
percent of our work from our offshore centers over the next 12 to 18 months.  Our 
clients are increasingly interested in driving more of their IT functions from our India 
centers, as they derive signifi cant cost, speed and quality benefi ts from this model. 

Increasing Shareholder Value Continues as a Syntel Hallmark.

We worked to make Syntel’s stellar balance sheet even stronger in 2004.  We 
closed the year with more than $168 million in cash and short-term investments, 
no debt and low days sales outstanding (DSOs).  With return to shareholders in 
mind, Syntel paid a $0.06 per share quarterly dividend in 2004. This makes Syntel 
one of the few in our market space to pay an ongoing dividend.

Going forward, the primary focus of the Syntel Leadership Team is on 
accelerating our top-line growth. As large corporations choose their go-to-market 
partners for global services, the time is now to ensure Syntel is a top choice for 
them. These strategic partnerships will translate into increased market share for 
Syntel, enhanced growth opportunities and outstanding shareholder value. Thank 
you for your continued support.

Best regards,

Bharat Desai

Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Bharat Desai

Chairman and 
Chief Executive Offi cer
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Adding Value, Every Day

“Arguably 
the most successful 

U.S.-based, dual shore vendor 
to date from a fi nancial perspective 

is Syntel.”  
 — Bullhound Report

The globalization of the services economy is in full swing, and Syntel is one of the companies helping 

Global 2000 corporations realize business value from this movement.  Syntel was one of the fi rst 

U.S.-based companies to deploy a Global Delivery Model, to cost-effectively and rapidly provide technology 

solutions to our clients.  Today, this approach is fast becoming the industry norm.

Despite the large amount of attention being paid to global IT outsourcing, we are still in the very early innings 

of this mega-trend. Forrester Research reports that only seven percent of Fortune 1000 corporations are 

fully leveraging global IT outsourcing today, but many more plan to do so in the coming years.  

Large clients are consolidating their vendor lists and focusing on the selection of three to fi ve “preferred 

partners” to manage their global IT initiatives. Syntel made progress on this front in 2004, adding seven 

of these new preferred partner agreements – bringing our total to 63.  These agreements provide 

Syntel with a “hunting license” to compete for global technology projects within the client environment 

and fuel our growth.
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The Power of India

Any discussion today about the IT industry inevitably involves India.

Why? 

With a population of just over one billion people, India has quickly 

emerged as the star of the global technology revolution. With 

its strong pro-technology 

government, world-class 

universities producing more 

than 150,000 tech graduates 

annually, and a labor rate 

that is hard to beat, India 

sees technology as its ticket 

to becoming a world leader. 

India’s economy – the second 

fastest growing in the world 

after China – is fueled by 

software and IT exports, which 

are projected to reach $50 

billion by 2008.

In recent years, major U.S. 

fi rms such as Microsoft, 

Cisco Systems, Oracle, GE 

and Procter & Gamble have 

established facilities to not only 

tap into the large consumer 

markets, but also to leverage 

the technology innovation the 

country offers. More than 100 IT and science-based fi rms have 

located R&D labs in India in the past fi ve years. 

Syntel opened its fi rst Global Development Center in Mumbai, India 

in 1992. The 12-hour time difference between the U.S. and India 

enables Syntel’s global teams to work in concert virtually 24-hours 

per day to deliver speed benefi ts to clients. In addition, the strong 

supply of high quality English-speaking knowledge workers coupled 

with salary cost benefi ts provides the foundation of an innovative 

Global Delivery Model for IT services. 

Since 1992, Syntel has aggressively increased its footprint in India. 

Today, more than 3,000 of Syntel’s 4,500 employees are located in 

India. The company has development centers in Mumbai, Chennai, 

and Pune, India. Work is underway on a 40-acre Technology 

Campus in Pune that will eventually have capacity for 9,000 Syntel 

knowledge workers, with Phase I ready by the summer of 2005. 

India is the world’s crown jewel when it comes to technology and 

Syntel is investing aggressively to be in the optimum position to 

provide these business benefi ts to its global clients.
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2004 Company Recognition Awards

Fortune Small 
Business: 
America’s 
Fastest-

Growing Small 
Companies

Healthcare 
Informatics 
100 Largest 
Healthcare 
IT Providers

The Fortune 
40 Top Stock 
Picks for 2004

BS 7799 
Security 

Certification 
for India 

Development 
Centers

VARBusiness 
500 Largest 
Solutions 
Providers 

in America

Forbes 200 
Best Small 
Companies

Full Lifecycle Offerings

To effectively grow share within a client account, a technology firm must continually add value and help them 

run their businesses more efficiency.  To achieve this, Syntel provides a wide range of solutions that cover the 

Latest-to-Legacy® technologies.

Applications Outsourcing.  Contributing 76 percent of revenues in 2004, Syntel’s Applications Outsourcing 

service, branded IntelliSourcing®, involves the development of new software applications, maintenance of 

existing systems and platform migrations from one technology to another. By leveraging our globally distributed 

network of development centers, we drive tremendous cost efficiencies, increased quality, speed-to-market 

and scalability every day for our customers. We use our mature IntelliTransfer® process for the transition and 

knowledge sharing critical to a successful application management project. 

e-Business. Syntel’s advanced technology solutions contributed approximately 16 percent of 2004 revenues. 

This segment includes Data Warehousing, Customer Relationship Management (CRM), Enterprise Resource 

Planning (ERP), Web Enablement and Wireless, among others. e-Business services tend to be shorter in 

contract duration and have a higher on-site consulting content.

Business Process Outsourcing (BPO). While only contributing one percent of revenue in 2004, Syntel is very 

optimistic about this segment.  Industry experts predict strong growth for BPO as organizations look for ways 

to leverage technology to cut costs and improve productivity related to business processes. Syntel provides an 

end-to-end solution for key verticals such as Financial Services/Banking, Healthcare, Insurance and Retail. Using 

its branded Identeon™ assessment approach, Syntel helps clients identify which processes are outsourcing-

ready. Syntel is focused on high value, high margin BPO services, while eschewing Call Center work and other 

capital-intensive BPO projects.

TeamSourcing®.  Contributing seven percent of revenues, TeamSourcing is the company’s IT staffing service. 

The majority of Syntel’s focus in the staffing area is a portal called SkillBay®. By providing a convenient 

marketplace for clients and staffing vendors to connect, 

Syntel’s SkillBay portal obtains a percentage of the fees 

generated by the placed consultant at the client site.

In our market space, there are hundreds of global IT services 

companies who can deliver quality work. As a U.S.-owned 

and operated company, Syntel brings a unique perspective 

to how we deliver services on-site, off-site and offshore 

for our customers. We understand their businesses, their 

markets and their communities. Our customers call this 

being “culturally aligned.” We call it a smarter way to work.

“The improved momentum on 
the Applications Outsourcing 

side, the best in almost two 
years, is an encouraging sign.”   

— Janney Montgomery Scott
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Five-Year Highlights
The following tables set forth selected consolidated financial data and other data concerning Syntel, Inc. for each of the 
last five years.  The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes thereto.

 (In thousands, except share data)

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
 
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA     

Net revenues (1) $ 186,573 $ 179,507 $ 161,507 $ 172,283 $ 166,240

Cost of revenues  107,120  101,699  94,010  106,943  106,034

Gross profit  79,453  77,808  67,497  65,340  60,206

Selling, general and administrative expenses   36,999  28,278  31,421  34,522  34,424

Capitalized development cost impairment  —  —  —  1,624  —

(Reduction in) / increases to reserve 
requirements applicable to Métier transaction   —  (882)  (5,698)  —  21,650

Income from operations  42,454  50,412  41,774  29,194  4,132

Other income, principally interest  3,773  3,168  3,191  3,780  3,412

Income before income taxes  46,227  53,580  44,965  32,974  7,544

Income tax provision (benefit)   5,253  13,242  12,338  8,636  (967)

Net income before loss from equity 
investments and investment write off  40,974  40,338  32,627  24,338  8,511

Loss from equity investments and 
investment write offs (net of tax)  —  34  141  3,893  526

Net income $ 40,974 $ 40,304 $ 32,486 $ 20,445 $ 7,985

Net income per share, diluted $ 1.01 $ 0.99 $ 0.81 $ 0.52 $ 0.20

Cash dividends declared per common share $  0.24 $ 1.37  —  —  —

Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted  40,469  40,797  39,917  38,987  39,467

 (In thousands, except headcount data)

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
 
BALANCE SHEET DATA     

Working capital $ 170,786 $ 142,207 $ 145,988 $ 103,502 $ 77,894

Total assets  226,968  185,198  183,572  152,247  132,898

Long-term debt  —  —  —  —  —

Total shareholders’ equity  190,642  153,406  154,844  112,258  96,683

      

OTHER DATA     

Billable headcount in U.S.  1,145  1,138  1,111  987  994

Billable headcount in India  1,906  1,376  943  419  511

Billable headcount at other locations  121  150  101  138  118

Total billable headcount  3,172  2,664  2,155  1,544  1,623

(1)  The Company adopted the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of ‘Out of Pocket’ Expenses Incurred” effective 

January 1, 2002.  Revenues for 2001 and 2000 have been reclassified to comply with the guidance of EITF 01-14. 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations
OVERVIEW

Syntel is a worldwide provider of professional IT consulting and applications management services to Global 2000 companies, 
as well as to government entities. The Company’s service offerings include Applications Outsourcing, consisting of application 
management services for ongoing management, development and maintenance of business applications; e-Business, 
consisting of the integration and development of advanced technology applications including e-Commerce, Web Development, 
Data Warehousing, Customer Relationship Management, Oracle, and SAP, as well as partnerships with leading software and IT 
application software infrastructure providers to provide it’s implementation, customization, migration and maintenance services 
including BEA Systems, IBM, Informatica, Microsoft, Oracle, Sun, TIBCO, MicroStrategy, Cognos, Identify, Mercury, Borland, 
Citrix, BroadVision and Vianeta; and TeamSourcing®, consisting of professional IT consulting services. 

Through BPO, Syntel provides outsourced solutions for a client’s business processes, providing them with the advantage of a 
low cost position and process enhancement through optimal use of technology. Syntel uses a proprietary tool called IdenteonTM 
to assist with strategic assessments of business processes, identifying the right ones for outsourcing.

The Company’s revenues are generated from professional services fees provided through four segments, Applications 
Outsourcing, e-Business, TeamSourcing and BPO. The Company has invested significantly in developing its ability to sell and 
deliver Applications Outsourcing and e-Business services, and has shifted a larger portion of its business to engagements 
within these two segments, which the Company believes have higher growth and gross margin potential. The following table 
outlines the revenue mix for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

PERCENT OF TOTAL REVENUES

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,   2004 2003 2002

Applications Outsourcing      76%  76%  71% 

e-Business      16  19  20       

TeamSourcing      7    5  9       

BPO       1  0  0

      100%  100%  100%

On Applications Outsourcing engagements, the Company typically assumes responsibility for engagement management and 
generally is able to allocate certain portions of the engagement to on-site, off-site and offshore personnel. Syntel may bill 
the customer on either a time-and-materials or fixed-price basis. Against a significant portion of Applications Outsourcing 
engagements, executed historically on a time-and-materials basis, a significant share of the new Applications Outsourcing 
engagements have started on a fixed-price basis during 2004, 2003 and 2002. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 
and 2002, fixed-price revenues from development and maintenance activity comprised approximately 58 percent, 56 percent 
and 65 percent of total Applications Outsourcing revenues, respectively. 

The Company re-skilled a very significant percentage of the consulting base during 2002, 2003 and 2004 in the latest advanced 
software platforms, including Java, C++, C#, .NET, RMI CORBA, SAP, PeopleSoft, ETL, DataStage, Ab Initio, Informatica and 
MicroStrategy. The Company has focused training efforts on consultants assigned to TeamSourcing engagements, and as a 
result, has successfully migrated such consultants to the growing e-Business segment. The Company has also cross trained 
its employees on current outsourcing engagements to be able to successfully migrate to and develop/ maintain the emerging 
technologies that our clients are investing in.

Historically, most e-Business engagements were billed on a time-and-materials basis under the direct supervision of the 
customer (similar to TeamSourcing engagements); however, as the Company expanded its expertise in delivering e-Commerce 
engagements, Syntel has assumed the project management role and entered into fixed-price arrangements for a significant 
number of new e-Business engagements started during 2004, 2003 and 2002. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 
and 2002, fixed price revenues from development and maintenance activity comprised approximately 54 percent, 51 percent 
and 24 percent of total e-Business revenues, respectively. 

On TeamSourcing engagements, Syntel’s professional services typically are provided at the customer’s site and under the 
direct supervision of the customer. TeamSourcing revenues generally are recognized on a time-and-materials basis as services 
are performed.

On BPO engagements, services are provided at our offshore facility, which gives the benefit of lower cost to the customer. BPO 
revenues generally are recognized on a time-and-materials basis as services are performed. For the year ended December 31, 
2004, the revenue from BPO engagements comprised approximately one percent of total revenues.
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The Company’s most significant cost is personnel, which consists of compensation, benefits, recruiting, relocation and other 
related costs for its IT professionals. The Company strives to maintain its gross margin by migrating more revenue toward 
Applications Outsourcing and e-Business, controlling engagement costs and offsetting increases in salaries and benefits 
with increases in billing rates. The Company has established a human resource allocation team, whose purpose is to staff IT 
professionals on engagements that efficiently utilize their technical skills and allow for optimal billing rates. Syntel India, a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Company, provides software development services from Mumbai, Pune and Chennai, India, where the 
salaries of IT professionals are comparatively lower than in the U.S. 

The Company has performed a significant portion of its employee recruiting in other countries. As of December 31, 2004, 
approximately 49 percent of Syntel’s U.S. workforce (14 percent of Syntel’s worldwide workforce) worked under H-1B visas 
(permitting temporary residence while employed in the U.S.) and another 16 percent of the Company’s U.S. workforce (5 percent 
of the Company’s worldwide workforce) worked under L-1 visas (permitting inter-company transfers of employees that have 
been employed with a foreign subsidiary for at least six months).

The Company has made substantial investments in infrastructure in recent years, including: (i) expanding the facilities 
in Mumbai, India, including a BPO facility; (ii) developing a Technology Campus in Pune, India; (iii) expanding the Global 
Development Center in Chennai, India; (iv) upgrading the Company’s global telecommunication network; (v) increasing 
Applications Outsourcing sales and delivery capabilities through significant expansion of the sales force and the Strategic 
Solutions Group, which develops and formalizes proprietary methodologies, practices and tools for the entire Syntel 
organization; (vi) hiring additional experienced senior management; (vii) expanding global recruiting and training capabilities; and 
(viii) enhancing human resource and financial information systems. 

Through its strong relationships with customers, the Company has been able to generate recurring revenues from repeat 
business. These strong relationships have also resulted in the Company generating a significant percentage of revenues from 
key customers. The Company’s top 10 customers accounted for approximately 61 percent, 64 percent and 71 percent of 
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, only one customer contributed revenues in excess of 10 percent of 
total consolidated revenues. The Company’s largest customer for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was American Express contributing 
approximately 16 percent, 16 percent and 18 percent, respectively, of total consolidated revenues. Although the Company does 
not currently foresee a credit risk associated with accounts receivable from this customer, credit risk is affected by conditions or 
occurrences within the economy and the specific industries in which these customers operate.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated selected income statement data as a percentage of the Company’s 
net revenues.

PERCENTAGE OF REVENUES 

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,     2004 2003 2002

Net revenues      100.0%  100.0%  100.0%

Cost of revenues      57.4  56.7  58.2

Gross profit      42.6  43.3  41.8 

Selling, general and administrative expenses      19.8  15.8  19.5

Reduction in reserve requirements applicable to Métier transaction     —  (0.5)  (3.5) 

Income from operations      22.8%  28.0%  25.8%
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Following is selected segment financial data for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.  The Company does not 
allocate assets to operating segments:

 (In thousands)

 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,   2004 2003 2002
 
Net Revenues   

 Applications Outsourcing     $ 143,007 $ 136,424 $ 113,981 

  e-Business      29,249  33,795  31,951

  TeamSourcing      12,480  9,288  15,575

 BPO      1,837   —  —

        $ 186,573 $ 179,507 $ 161,507 

Gross Margin   

  Applications Outsourcing     $ 62,696 $ 62,282 $ 54,053 

  e-Business      11,302  14,389  11,429

  TeamSourcing      4,598  1,137  2,015

 BPO      857  —  —

        $ 79,453 $ 77,808 $ 67,497 

Gross Margin %   

  Applications Outsourcing      43.8%  45.7%  47.4%

  e-Business      38.6%  42.6%  35.8%

  TeamSourcing      36.8%  12.2%  12.9%

 BPO      46.7%  —  —

         42.6%  43.3%  41.8%

      

Sales, general and administrative expenses     $ 36,999 $ 28,278 $ 31,421 

Reduction in reserve requirements for Métier transaction     $ —    $  (882) $ (5,698)

Income from Operations     $ 42,454  $ 50,412 $ 41,774 

COMPARISON OF YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003.

REVENUES.  Net revenues increased from $179.5 million in 2003 to $186.6 million in 2004, representing a 3.9 percent 
increase.  During the first quarter of 2004, the Company entered into its first Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) agreement, 
which contributed $1.8 million in revenue for the year 2004. Further, our revenues have increased primarily consequent to our 
increased workforce. Information technology offshoring is clearly becoming a mega-trend with increasing numbers of global 
corporations aggressively outsourcing their crucial applications development or business processes to vendors with an offshore 
presence. Syntel has also benefited from this trend. At the beginning of 2004, the Company introduced the Client Partner 
Program, which enabled better relationships with key customers, leading to growth in business. Worldwide billable headcount, 
including personnel employed by Syntel India, Syntel Singapore, Syntel Europe and Syntel Germany as of December 31, 2004 
increased 19 percent to 3,172 employees as compared to 2,664 employees as of December 31, 2003. However, the growth in 
revenues was not commensurate with the growth in the billable headcount. This is primarily because a significant growth in 
the billable headcount was in India, where our recoveries per offshore billable resource is generally lower as compared to an on-
site based resource.   As of December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately 60 percent of its billable workforce in India as 
compared to 52 percent as of December 31, 2003. The Company also decreased its dependence on its larger customers.    The 
top five customers accounted for 40 percent of the total revenues in 2004, down from 42 percent of the total revenues in 2003. 
Moreover, the top 10 customers accounted for 61 percent of the revenues in 2004, compared to 64 percent in 2003.  

APPLICATIONS OUTSOURCING REVENUES. Applications Outsourcing revenues increased from $136.4 million, or 76 percent 
of total revenues in 2003, to $143.0 million, also 76 percent of total revenues in 2004. The $6.6 million increase is attributable 
principally revenue from new engagements, contributing $45.9 million partially offset by a net decrease in existing projects in 
the amount of $15.6 million and by $23.7 million in lost revenues as a result of project completions.  

APPLICATIONS OUTSOURCING COST OF REVENUES. Cost of revenues consists of costs directly associated with billable 
consultants worldwide, including salaries, payroll taxes, benefits, relocation costs, immigration costs, finders’ fees and trainee 
compensation. Applications Outsourcing cost of revenues increased to 56.2 percent of Applications Outsourcing revenues 
in 2004, from 54.3 percent in 2003. The 1.9 percent increase in cost of revenues as a percent of revenues was attributable 
primarily to the aggressive offshore hiring during 2004, which impacted costs, but did not necessarily add to revenues as a 
significant number of these hires went into training.  
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e-BUSINESS REVENUES.   e-Business revenues decreased from $33.8 million in 2003, or 19 percent of total consolidated 
revenues, to $29.2 million in 2004, or 16 percent of total consolidated revenues.  The $4.6 million decrease was attributable 
principally to lost revenues as a result of project completion and net reduction in revenues from existing projects contributing 
approximately $12.2 million, partially offset by approximately $5.9 million in revenue from new engagements and a nonrecurring 
$1.7 million reduction in revenue in 2003, resulting from a regular warrant granted to a significant customer as a sales incentive.  

e-BUSINESS COST OF REVENUES.  Cost of revenues consists of costs directly associated with billable consultants, including 
salaries, payroll taxes, benefits, relocation costs, immigration costs, finders’ fees, and trainee compensation. e-Business cost of 
revenues increased to 61.4 percent of e-Business revenues in 2004, from 57.4 percent in 2003, an increase of 4.0 percent. This 
increase was attributable primarily to the aggressive hiring that impacted costs, but did not necessarily add to revenues as a 
significant number of these hires were still in training.

TEAMSOURCING REVENUES.  TeamSourcing revenues increased from $9.3 million, or 5 percent of total consolidated 
revenues in 2003, to $12.5 million, or 7 percent of total consolidated revenues in 2004. The $3.2 million increase is attributable 
principally to revenue from new engagements and increased revenue of $4.7 million from the SkillBay portal, partially offset by 
$1.5 million in lost revenues as a result of project completion and net reduction in revenues from existing projects. 

TEAMSOURCING COST OF REVENUES.  TeamSourcing cost of revenues consists of costs directly associated with 
billable consultants, including salaries, payroll taxes, benefits, relocation costs, immigration costs, finders’ fees, and trainee 
compensation.  TeamSourcing cost of revenues decreased to 63.2 percent of TeamSourcing revenues in 2004, from 87.8 
percent in 2003.  The 24.6 percent decrease in cost of revenues, as a percent of total TeamSourcing revenues was attributable 
primarily to the higher margin TeamSourcing placements and net revenues from SkillBay Web portal placements during 2004. 

BPO REVENUES.  The BPO segment started contributing revenues during 2004. Revenues from this segment were $1.8 million 
or 1 percent of total revenues for the year ended 2004.

BPO COST OF REVENUES.  The BPO segment cost of revenues consists of costs directly associated with billable consultants, 
including salaries, payroll taxes, benefits, finders‘ fees, trainee compensation, travel, consumables as well as dedicated 
connectivity charges. The BPO segment cost of revenues was 53.3 percent of the segment’s revenues for the year ended 
December 31, 2004.

As a result of the continued uncertainty and weakness in the global economic and political environment, companies continue 
to seek to outsource their IT spending offshore. However, the Company also sees clients’ needs to reduce their costs and 
the increased competitive environment among IT companies. The Company expects these conditions to continue in the next 
few quarters. In response to the continued pricing pressures and increased competition for outsourcing clients, the Company 
continues to focus on expanding its service offerings into areas with higher and sustainable price margins, managing its 
cost structure and anticipating and correcting for decreased demand and skill and pay level imbalances in its personnel. The 
Company’s immediate measures include increased management of compensation expenses through headcount management 
and variable compensation plans, as well as increasing utilization rates or reducing non-deployed subcontractors or non-billable 
IT professionals.  

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily 
of salaries, payroll taxes and benefits for sales, solutions, finance, administrative and corporate staff, as well as travel, 
telecommunications, business promotions, marketing and various facility costs for the Company’s Global Development Centers 
and various offices.  

Selling, general and administrative costs for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $37.0 million or 19.8 percent of total 
revenues, compared to $28.3 million or 15.8 percent of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003. 

Selling, general and administrative costs for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes net reversals of $0.5 million primarily 
on account of successful recovery of receivables previously provided for as allowance for doubtful accounts, a $2.0 million 
revision of the estimated reserve for litigation and legal fees due to settlements and other changes in estimates of underlying 
legal costs, a $0.7 million reduction in office-related expenses due to the settlement of vendor disputes and a downward 
revision of the 2002 estimates of bonus compensation of $0.8 million.

After considering the impact of the above-mentioned items, the selling, general and administrative expenses are at 19.8 percent 
and 18.0 percent of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The 1.8 percent increase 
in selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue is primarily due to net increases in costs related to 
depreciation of $1.0 million, communication expenses of $0.9 million, compensation and hiring related expenses in U.S. and 
India of $0.6 million, travel expenses of $0.4 million, marketing expenses of $0.3 million and corporate expenses of $1.5 million, 
which resulted in an approximately 2.6 percent increase, partially offset by increases in revenue during the 12 months ended 
December 31, 2004 as against the 12 months ended December 31, 2003, which resulted in an approximately 0.8 percent 
decrease.

COMPARISON OF YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002. 

REVENUES.  Net revenues increased from $161.5 million in 2002 to $179.5 million in 2003, representing an 11.1 percent 
increase.  Worldwide billable headcount, including personnel employed by Syntel India, Syntel Singapore, Syntel Europe and Syntel 
Germany as of December 31, 2003 increased 24 percent to 2,664 employees compared to 2,155 employees as of December 
31, 2002. However, the growth in revenues was not commensurate with the growth in the billable headcount. This is primarily 
because a significant growth in the billable headcount was in India, where our recoveries per offshore billable resource is generally 
lower compared to an on-site resource.   As of December 31, 2003, the Company had approximately 52 percent of its billable 
workforce in India as compared to 44 percent as of December 31, 2002. Further, revenue generation from these additional billable 
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headcounts started primarily during the second-half of the year 2003. The Company also decreased its dependence on its larger 
customers. The top five customers accounted for 42 percent of the total revenues in 2003, down from 48 percent of the total 
revenues in 2002.  Moreover, the top 10 customers accounted for 64 percent of the revenues in 2003 as compared to 71 percent 
in 2002.  

APPLICATIONS OUTSOURCING REVENUES. Applications Outsourcing revenues increased from $114.0 million, or 71 percent 
of total revenues in 2002, to $136.4 million, or 76 percent of total revenues in 2003. The $22.5 million increase is attributable 
principally to revenue from new engagements, contributing $37.9 million and net increase in existing projects contributing $4.2 
million, partially offset by $19.6 million in lost revenues as a result of project completions.  

APPLICATIONS OUTSOURCING COST OF REVENUES. Cost of revenues consists of costs directly associated with billable 
consultants in both the U.S. and offshore, including salaries, payroll taxes, benefits, relocation costs, immigration costs, 
finders’ fees and trainee compensation. Applications Outsourcing cost of revenues increased to 54.3 percent of Applications 
Outsourcing revenues in 2003 from 52.6 percent in 2002. The 1.7 percent increase in cost of revenues as a percent of revenues 
was partly attributable to the aggressive hiring during the second half of 2003, which impacted costs, but did not necessarily 
add to revenues as a significant number of these hires went into training.  This contributed approximately 0.4 percent of the 
increase. Additionally, due to an internal policy change during 2002, there was a release of vacation reserves in 2002 related 
to unused employee vacation time.  This resulted in a lower cost of revenues during 2002 and contributes approximately 1.3 
percent to the increase during 2003. 

e-BUSINESS REVENUES.   e-Business revenues increased from $32.0 million in 2002, or 20 percent of total consolidated 
revenues, to $33.8 million in 2003, or 19 percent of total consolidated revenues.  During 2002, the Company had granted a 
sales incentive to a significant customer of $2.9 million compared to only $1.7 million during 2003, a decrease of $1.2 million.  
Net of this decrease in the sales incentive, e-Business revenues have generally remained flat during 2003, as compared to 2002. 
Increase of revenue from new engagements contributed $14.8 million, offset by $14.2 million in lost revenues as a result of 
project completion and net reductions in existing projects.

e-BUSINESS COST OF REVENUES. Cost of revenues consists of costs directly associated with billable consultants, including 
salaries, payroll taxes, benefits, relocation costs, immigration costs, finders’ fees and trainee compensation.  e-Business cost of 
revenues decreased to 57.4 percent of e-Business revenues in 2003 from 64.2 percent in 2002, a decrease of 6.8 percent.  As 
referred to above, during 2002, e-Business revenues were lower primarily due to a sales incentive, which had been granted to 
a significant customer.  This incentive resulted in a 5.5 percent increase in the cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues. 
Additionally, increased utilization of our offshore resources has also contributed to a reduction of the cost of revenues of 
approximately 2.2 percent.  These decreases were partially offset by an increase in the cost of revenues as a percent of 
revenues attributable to the release of vacation reserves in 2002 related to unused employee vacation time, due to an internal 
policy change, which resulted in an increase of approximately 0.9 percent. 

TEAMSOURCING REVENUES.  TeamSourcing revenues decreased from $15.6 million, or 9 percent of total consolidated 
revenues in 2002, to $9.3 million, or 5 percent of total consolidated revenues in 2003. The $6.3 million decrease in 
TeamSourcing revenues was attributable principally to a decrease in U.S.-based billable consultants on various engagements 
as a result of a conscious decision by management to reduce organizational focus on this segment and focus on higher margin 
segments of Applications Outsourcing and e-Business. 

TEAMSOURCING COST OF REVENUES. TeamSourcing cost of revenues consists of costs directly associated with 
billable consultants, including salaries, payroll taxes, benefits, relocation costs, immigration costs, finders’ fees and trainee 
compensation.  TeamSourcing cost of revenues increased marginally to 87.8 percent of TeamSourcing revenues in 2003, from 
87.1 percent in 2002.  The 0.7 percent increase in cost of revenues as a percent of revenues was attributable principally to 
lower utilization of our resources due to the softness in the economy. 

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of 
salaries, payroll taxes and benefits for sales, solutions, finance, administrative and corporate staff, travel, telecommunications, 
business promotions, marketing and various facility costs for the Company’s Global Development Centers and various offices.  

Selling, general and administrative costs for the year ended December 31, 2003 were $28.3 million or 15.8 percent of total 
revenues, compared to $31.4 million or 19.5 percent of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002. 

Selling, general and administrative costs for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes net reversals of $0.5 million primarily 
on account of successful recovery of receivables previously provided for as allowance for doubtful accounts, $2.0 million 
revision of the estimated reserve for litigation and legal fees due to settlements and other changes in estimates of underlying 
legal costs, $0.7 million reduction in office-related expenses due to the settlement of vendor disputes and a downward revision 
of the 2002 estimates of bonus compensation of $0.8 million.

Selling, general and administrative costs for the year ended December 31, 2002 included an additional reserve of $2.0 million 
due to a revision of the estimated reserve for litigation and legal fees due to changes in estimates of underlying legal costs, an 
additional reserve of  $0.5 million as an allowance for doubtful accounts, a downward revision of the 2001 estimates of bonus 
compensation of $2.8 million, an additional reserve for bonus for the year 2002 of $2.0 million and a $0.3 million reduction in 
office-related expenses due to reversal of outstanding checks pertaining to earlier periods.

After considering the impact of nonrecurring items, the selling, general and administrative expenses are at 18.0 percent and 
19.8 percent of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The 1.8 percent reduction in 
selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue is primarily on account of increase in revenue in 2003 
compared to 2002.
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this document sets forth certain quarterly income 
statement data for each of the eight quarters beginning January 1, 2003 and ending December 31, 2004. In the opinion of 
management, this information has been presented on the same basis as the Company’s Financial Statements appearing 
elsewhere in this document, and all necessary adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) have been 
included in order to present fairly the unaudited quarterly results. The results of operations for any quarter are not necessarily 
indicative of the results for any future period.

The Company’s quarterly revenues and results of operations have not fluctuated significantly from quarter to quarter in the 
past, but could fluctuate in the future. Factors that could cause such fluctuations include the timing, number and scope of 
customer engagements commenced and completed during the quarter; fluctuation in the revenue mix by segments; progress 
on fixed-price engagements; acquisitions; timing and costs associated with expansion of the Company’s facilities; changes in 
IT professional wage rates; the accuracy of estimates of resources and time frames required to complete pending assignments; 
the number of working days in a quarter; employee hiring and training, attrition and utilization rates; the mix of services 
performed on-site, off-site and offshore; termination of engagements; start-up expenses for new engagements; longer sales 
cycles for Applications Outsourcing engagements; customers’ budget cycles; investment time for training. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company generally has financed its working capital needs through operations. Both the Mumbai and Chennai expansion 
programs, as well as the 1999 acquisitions of Métier, Inc. and IMG, Inc. were financed from internally generated funds.  
Additionally, construction of the Technology Campus in Pune, India is being financed through internally generated funds.  

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of certificates of deposit, corporate bonds and treasury notes. A 
part of such amounts are held by Bank One for which an “AAA” rated letter of credit has been provided. Remaining amounts are 
held by various banking institutions including other U.S.-based and India-based banks.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $48.5 million, $44.1 million and $32.7 million for the years ended December 31, 
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The number of days sales outstanding in accounts receivable was approximately 61 days, 
60 days and 56 days as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Net cash used in investing activities was $33.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.  During 2004, the Company 
invested $94.3 million to purchase short-term investments and $12.0 million for capital expenditures, consisting principally 
of PCs, communications equipment and infrastructure and facilities.  This was partially offset by the sale of short-term 
investments of $73.2 million in equities and other investments.

Net cash used in investing activities was $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. During 2003, the Company 
invested $52.3 million to purchase short-term investments and $4.2 million for capital expenditures, consisting principally of 
PCs, communications equipment and infrastructure and facilities. This was partially offset by the sale of short-term investments 
of $36.0 million and $0.3 million in equities and other investments.

Net cash provided by investing activities in 2002 of $8.7 million included $30.6 million of proceeds from the sale of short-term 
investments, partially offset by $19.8 million used to purchase short-term investments and $2.1 million for capital expenditures, 
consisting principally of PCs and communications equipment. 

Net cash used in financing activities in 2004 was $8.0 million, due principally to the dividend distribution of $9.7 million and the 
repurchase of 100,000 shares of Common Stock for $1.4 million, partially offset by proceeds from the issuance of shares under 
stock option and stock purchase plans of $3.1 million.

Net cash used in financing activities in 2003 was $45.9 million, due principally to the dividend distribution of $52.3 million and 
the repurchase of 10,000 shares of Common Stock for $0.1 million, partially offset by proceeds from the issuance of shares 
under stock option and stock purchase plans of $6.5 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities in 2002 was $3.3 million, due principally to the proceeds from the issuance of shares 
under stock option and stock purchase plans of $6.6 million, offset by the repurchase of 250,000 shares of Common Stock for 
$3.3 million. 

The Company has a line of credit with Bank One, which provides for borrowings up to $20.0 million. The line of credit has been 
renewed and now expires on August 31, 2005. The line of credit contains covenants restricting the Company from, among 
other things, incurring additional debt, issuing guarantees and creating liens on the Company’s property without the prior 
consent of the bank. The line of credit also requires the Company to maintain certain tangible net worth levels and leverage 
ratios. The line of credit has a sub-limit of $5.0 million for letters of credit, which bear a fee of 1 percent per annum of the face 
value of each standby letter of credit issued. Borrowing under the line of credit bears interest at (i) a formula approximating the 
Eurodollar rate plus the applicable margin of 1.25 percent, (ii) the bank’s prime rate minus 1.0 percent or (iii) negotiated rate plus 
1.25 percent. No borrowings were outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003. 

The Company believes that the combination of present cash balances and future operating cash flows will be sufficient to meet 
the Company’s currently anticipated cash requirements for at least the next 12 months.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s known contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004:

 (In thousands, except share data)

     

     Y                                 Payments are by period

 Total Less than 1–3 years 3–5 years More than
  1 year   5 years 
 
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA     

Long-term debt $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —

Capital lease obligations  —  —  —  —  —

Operating leases  10,117  2,373  4,085  3,356  303

Purchase obligations  9,682  9,682  —  —  —

Other long-term liabilities reflected on the 
registrant’s balance sheet under GAAP  —  —  —  —  —

Total $ 19,799 $ 12,055 $ 4,085 $ 3,356 $ 303

Certain agreements for lease and purchase obligations included above are cancelable with a specified notice period or penalty, 
however all contracts are reflected in the table above as if they will be performed for the full term of the agreement.

INCOME TAX MATTERS

Syntel’s software development centers/units are located in Mumbai, Chennai and Pune. Units in Mumbai are located in a Special 
Economic Zone (SEZ), the unit at Chennai is 100 percent Export Oriented Unit (EOU) and units at Pune are registered with 
Software Technologies Park of India (STPI). Under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 (the “Act”), 100 percent EOUs at Chennai, 
units registered with STPI at Pune and certain units located in SEZ are eligible for an exemption from payment of corporate 
income taxes for up to 10 years of operations on the profits generated from these undertakings or March 31, 2009 whichever is 
earlier. Certain units located in SEZ are eligible for 100 percent exemption from payment of corporate taxes for the first five years 
of operation and a 50 percent exemption for the next five years.  

Effective April 1, 2003, one of the Company’s Software Development Units has ceased to enjoy the above-mentioned 
tax exemption. Provision for Indian income tax is made only in respect of business profits generated from this software 
development unit, to the extent they are not covered by the above exemptions and on income from investments and 
interest income. 

The benefit of tax Holiday granted by the Indian authorities was $7.6 million, $9.1 million and $5.9 million for the years 2004, 
2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company intends to use accumulated and future earnings of foreign subsidiaries to expand operations outside the 
United States and accordingly undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely reinvested outside 
the United States and no provision for U.S. federal and state income tax or applicable dividend distribution tax has been 
provided thereon. 

However, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“The Jobs Act”), enacted on October 22, 2004, provides for reduced 
U.S. income tax rates for repatriation of foreign earnings that occur prior to December 31, 2005. While the company has no 
current plans for the repatriation of foreign earnings, the company is evaluating the potential effects of the Jobs Act and 
foreign laws that affect any such repatriation. If the company determined to repatriate all undistributed repatriable earnings of 
foreign subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 (without considering the Jobs Act provisions), the company would have accrued 
taxes of approximately $52.8 million.  If the company determined to repatriate all undistributed repatriable earnings of foreign 
subsidiaries (under the Jobs Act), the company would accrue taxes, which would be material in amount, but significantly less 
than $52.8 million mentioned above.

The Company records provisions for income taxes based on enacted tax laws and rates in the various taxing jurisdictions in 
which it operates. In determining the tax provisions, the Company also provides for tax contingencies based on the Company’s 
assessment of future regulatory reviews of filed tax returns. Such reserves, which are recorded in income taxes payable, are 
based on management’s estimates and accordingly are subject to revision based on additional information.  The provision no 
longer required for any particular tax year is credited to the current period’s income tax expenses. 

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company has reversed $1.7 million of such tax provision related to the year 
2000 and credited it to the current year’s income tax expenses. During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, 
the effective income tax rate was 11.4 percent, 24.7 percent and 27.4 percent, respectively. The effective income tax rate during 
the year ended December 31, 2004, without adjusting the above-mentioned reversal, the tax credit of $0.5 million in Syntel 
India and the research and development tax credit of $0.5 million in Syntel, Inc., was 17.3 percent. The tax rate continues to be 
positively impacted by the combined effects of offshore transition and reduced on-site profitability. 

Syntel India has not provided for disputed Indian income tax liabilities aggregating $2.18 million for the financial years 1995-96 
to 2000-01. Syntel India has obtained an opinion from one independent legal counsel  (former Chief Justice of the Supreme 
Court of India) for the financial year 1998-99 and two opinions from another independent legal counsel (also a former Chief 
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Justice of the Supreme Court of India) for the financial years 1999-2000 and 2000-01, which support Syntel India’s stand in this 
matter. During the second quarter of 2004, Syntel India also obtained opinions from the said legal counsel for the periods 1995-
96 to 1997-98 and periods beginning with financial year 2001-02 to date, which also support Syntel India’s stand in this matter. 

Syntel India had filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) for the financial year 1998-99 and received a 
favorable decision. However, the Income Tax Department has appealed this favorable decision with the Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal. A similar appeal filed by Syntel India with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) for the financial year 1999-2000 was 
dismissed in March 2004. Syntel India has appealed this decision with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. Syntel India has since 
also received orders for appeals filed with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demands raised in March 2004 by 
the Income Tax Officer for similar matters relating to the financial years 1995-96, 1996-97, 1997-98 and 2000-01 and received a 
favorable decision for 1995-96, and for the other three years the contention of Syntel India is partially upheld.  Syntel India has 
gone into further appeal with the Income tax Appellate Tribunal for the amounts not allowed by the Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeals).

Further, Syntel India has received demand for interest amounting to $0.019 million and $0.013 million for late payment of 
demand pertaining to the financial year 2000-01 and 1999-00, respectively, against which Syntel India had filed appeals with 
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).  The said appeals have been dismissed. Syntel India is in the process of filing petition 
with Chief Commissioner of Income Tax.

On February 28, 2005, Syntel India received a demand from the Indian income tax authorities for Indian Income tax of $3.403 
million for the financial year 2001-02. Out of this amount, Syntel India has not provided for $2.968 million. Syntel India has 
obtained an opinion from an independent legal counsel (former Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of India) supporting Syntel 
India’s position for an item of dispute amounting to $0.386 million. For the other items of dispute, Syntel India has obtained an 
opinion from another independent legal counsel (former Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of India) that supports Syntel India’s 
stand in this matter. Further, Syntel India is in the process of filing an appeal with the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). 

All above tax exposures involve complex issues and may need an extended period to resolve the issues with Indian income 
tax authorities.

TAX CREDIT

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the provision for income tax was reduced by research and development tax credits 
claimed.  The tax credits relate to increased qualified expenditures for software development. The Company recently completed 
a review of such qualified expenditures and filed refund claims for the tax years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 
2002. The appropriate tax benefit for these years has been recorded currently in conjunction with the completion of the review. 
This tax credit had a positive impact of $0.5 million on taxes. 

In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2004 Syntel India accounted for a credit of approximately $0.5 million in 
respect of U.S. branch profit taxes related to prior periods up to June 30, 2004 and also reclassified in the balance sheet $1.0 
million from provision for income taxes to deferred tax liability.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R), which replaces SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” 
and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS 123(R) requires compensation costs 
relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements. The pro forma disclosure previously 
permitted under SFAS 123 will no longer be an acceptable alternative to recognition of expenses in the financial statements. 
SFAS 123(R) is effective as of the beginning of the first reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005, with early adoption 
encouraged. The Company currently measures compensation costs related to share-based payments under APB 25, as allowed 
by SFAS 123, and provides disclosure in notes to financial statements as required by SFAS 123. The Company is required to 
adopt SFAS 123(R) starting from the third quarter of 2005. The Company expects the adoption of SFAS 123(R) may have a 
material impact on its net income and net income per share. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the extent of 
such impact. 

In December 2004, FASB issued SFAS 153, “Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets—an amendment to APB Opinion No. 29.” This 
statement amends APB 29 to eliminate the exception for non-monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces 
it with a general exception for exchanges of non-monetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A non-monetary 
exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of 
the exchange. Adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations or 
financial condition. 

In December 2004, FASB Staff Position No. FAS 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings 
Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“FSP FAS 109-2”) was issued, providing guidance 
under SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” for recording the potential impact of the repatriation provisions of the American 
Jobs Creation Act of 2004, enacted on October 22, 2004. FSP FAS 109-2 allows time beyond the financial reporting period 
of enactment to evaluate the effects of the Jobs Act before applying the requirements of FSP FAS 109-2. Accordingly, the 
Company is evaluating the potential effects of the Jobs Act and has not adjusted its tax expense or deferred tax liability to 
reflect the requirements of FSP FAS 109-2.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
 (In thousands, except share data)

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 
 
ASSETS   
   
Current assets:   

 Cash and cash equivalents $ 109,142 $ 102,854

 Short-term investments  58,899  33,982

 Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 
 $1,213 and $809 at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively   28,790  25,197

 Revenue earned in excess of billings  4,390  6,324

 Deferred income taxes and other current assets  5,891  5,642

  Total current assets  207,112  173,999

Property and equipment  37,754   25,617

 Less accumulated depreciation  21,290  18,502

  Property and equipment, net  16,464  7,115

Goodwill  906   906

Deferred income taxes and other non-current assets  2,486  3,178

 Total assets  $    226,968  $    185,198

    

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY     

Current liabilities:   

 Accounts payable $ 2,394  $      1,056

 Accrued payroll and related costs  13,963  11,851

 Income taxes payable  6,290  6,507

 Accrued liabilities  6,015  5,798

 Deferred revenue  5,231  4,179

 Dividends payable  2,433  2,401

  Total current liabilities  36,326  31,792 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

Common Stock, no par value per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized;
40,256,825 and 40,016,194 shares issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively  1  1

Additional paid-in capital  57,185  54,038

296,900 and nil restricted stock issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively   828  —

Accumulated other comprehensive income   3,466  1,519

Retained earnings  129,162  97,848

 Total shareholders’ equity  190,642  153,406

 Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  $    226,968 $    185,198

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income
 (In thousands, except share data)

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002 
 
Net revenues $ 186,573 $ 179,507 $ 161,507

Cost of revenues  107,120  101,699  94,010

Gross profit  79,453  77,808  67,497

Selling, general and administrative expenses  36,999  28,278  31,421

Reduction in reserve requirements applicable to Métier transaction  —  (882)  (5,698)

Income from operations  42,454  50,412  41,774

Other income, principally interest  3,773  3,168  3,191

 Income before income taxes   46,227  53,580  44,965

Provision for income taxes  5,253  13,242  12,338

 Income before loss from equity investments   40,974  40,338  32,627 
 

Loss from equity investment   —  34  141

 Net income $ 40,974 $ 40,304 $ 32,486

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE $ 0.24 $ 1.37 $ —

EARNINGS PER SHARE:   

 Basic $ 1.02 $ 1.02 $ 0.84

 Diluted $ 1.01 $ 0.99 $ 0.81

    

 Weighted average common shares outstanding:   

 Basic  40,216  39,609  38,733

 Diluted  40,469  40,797  39,917

  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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   Common Stock   Restricted Stock    Additional
  Paid-In
  Capital

  Retained
  Earnings

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

  Total
  Shareholders’

  Equity

   Shares    Amount    Shares     Amount  Unrealized  
Gain 

 Foreign Currency 
Translation 
Adjustment

Balance, January 1, 2002 38,389 $   1 — $     — $ 34,145 $ 79,689 $  33 $  (1,610) $ 112,258

Net income 32,486 32,486

Unrealized gain on investments, 
net of tax

644 644

Translation adjustments   417 417

Total comprehensive income 32,486 644 417 33,547

Common stock repurchases (250) (3,361) (3,361)

Employee stock purchase plan 76 523 523

Exercised stock options 853 6,093 6,093

Tax benefit on stock options exercised 2,881 2,881

Stock warrants sales incentive 4,407 4,407

Deferred stock warrant sales incentive     (1,504)    (1,504)

Balance, December 31, 2002 39,068 1 —  — 43,184 112,175 677 (1,193) 154,844

Net income 40,304 40,304

Unrealized gain on investments, 
net of tax

136 136

Translation adjustments   1,899 1,899

Total comprehensive income 40,304 136 1,899 42,339

Common stock repurchases (10) (160) (160)

Employee stock purchase plan 61 696 696

Exercised stock options 687 5,842 5,842

Tax benefit on stock options exercised 2,699 2,699

Warrants issued as sales incentive 
converted into common stock 

210 1,777 1,777

Dividends, $1.37 per share (54,661) (54,661)

Other      30   30

Balance, December 31, 2003 40,016 1 — — 54,038 97,848 813 706 153,406 

Net income 40,974 40,974

Unrealized gain / (loss) on investments, 
net of tax

(267) (267)

Translation adjustments   2,214 2,214

Total comprehensive income 40,974 (267) 2,214 42,921

Common stock repurchases (100) (1,479) (1,479)

Employee stock purchase plan 73 1,021 1,021

Exercised stock options 265 2,118 2,118

Tax benefit on stock options exercised 1,410 1,410

Restricted stock 319 5,838 5,838

Forfeiture of restricted stock (22) (410) (410)

Unearned compensation related to 
restricted stock

(4,600) (4,600)

Warrants issued as sales incentive 
converted into common stock 

3 77 77

Dividends, $ 0.24 per share (9,660) (9,660)

Balance, December 31, 2004 40,257  $   1 297 $  828 $ 57,185 $ 129,162  $  546  $  2,920  $ 190,642 

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
 (In thousands, except share data)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
 (In thousands)

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002 
 
Cash flows from operating activities:      

 Net income   $  40,974   $ 40,304   $  32,486  

 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 
 operating activities      

  Depreciation and amortization  3,024   2,522   2,176 

  Bad debt provisions / (credits)  400  (493)  518

  Reduction in reserve requirements applicable to the Métier transaction  —   (882)  (5,698)

  Realized gains on sales of short-term investments  (2,049)  (1,015)  (727)

  Deferred income taxes   1,101   3,940   (345)

  Stock warrants sales incentive  77   1,777   2,903

  Compensation expense related to restricted stock   884   —   —

  Loss on equity investments   —   34   141 

  Changes in assets and liabilities:   

   Accounts receivable and revenue earned in excess of billing, net  (469)  (5,836)  4,748

   Other current assets  (300)  232   (406)

   Accrued payroll and other liabilities  4,046   4,411  (2,933)

   Deferred revenues  783   (851)  (165) 

 Net cash provided by operating activities  48,471   44,143   32,698  

Cash flows from investing activities:   

  Property and equipment expenditures  (12,017)  (4,226)  (2,078)

  Equity and other investments  —   223   — 

  Purchase of short-term investments:   

      Investments in mutual funds  (72,825)  (52,313)  (15,228)

      Investments in term deposits with banks  (21,516)  —   (4,614)

  Proceeds from sales of short-term investments:    

   Proceeds from sales of mutual funds  65,866  33,924  28,084

   Maturities of term deposits with banks  7,394  2,162  2,568

 Net cash (used in) / provided by investing activities  (33,098)  (20,230)  8,732 

Cash flows from financing activities:   

  Net proceeds from issuance of common stock  3,140   6,538   6,616 

  Common stock repurchases  (1,479)  (160)  (3,361)

  Dividends paid  (9,685)  (52,260)  — 

 Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities  (8,024)  (45,882)  3,255 

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash  (1,061)  (170)  235 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  6,288   (22,140)  44,920 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  102,854   124,994   80,074 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $ 109,142   $ 102,854   $ 124,994 

Non-cash investing and financing activities:   

 Cash dividends declared but unpaid   $ 2,433   $ 2,401   —

 Stock warrants  77  —  —

Cash paid for income taxes  5,543   5,582   10,100 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. BUSINESS

Syntel, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) provide information technology services such as programming, systems 
integration, outsourcing and overall project management.  The Company provides services to customers primarily in the 
financial, manufacturing, healthcare, transportation, retail, and information/communication industries, as well as to government 
entities. The Company’s reportable operating segments consist of Applications Outsourcing, e-Business, TeamSourcing and 
Business Process Outsourcing (BPO). 

Through Applications Outsourcing, the Company provides higher-value outsourcing services for ongoing management, 
development and maintenance of customers’ business applications. In most Application Outsourcing engagements, the 
Company assumes responsibility for the management of customer development and support functions. These services may be 
provided on either a time-and-material basis or on a fixed price basis. 

Through e-Business, the Company provides development and implementation services for a number of emerging and rapidly 
growing high technology applications, including Web development, Data Warehousing, e-Commerce, CRM and Oracle, as 
well as partnership arrangements with leading software firms, to provide installation services to their respective customers. 
These services may be provided on either a time-and-material basis or on a fixed price basis, in which the Company assumes 
responsibility for management of the engagement. 

Through TeamSourcing, the Company provides professional information technology consulting services directly to customers 
on a staff augmentation basis.  TeamSourcing services include systems specification, design, development, implementation 
and maintenance of complex information technology applications involving diverse computer hardware, software, data and 
networking technologies and practices.  TeamSourcing consultants, whether working individually or as a team of professionals, 
generally receive direct supervision from the customer’s management staff. TeamSourcing services are generally invoiced on a 
time-and-material basis.  

Through BPO, Syntel provides outsourced solutions for a client’s business processes, providing them with the advantage of a 
low-cost position and process enhancement through optimal use of technology. Syntel uses a proprietary tool called IdenteonTM 
to assist with strategic assessments of business processes and identifying the right ones for outsourcing.

2. SUMMARY OF CERTAIN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Syntel, Inc. (“Syntel”), a Michigan corporation, its wholly owned 
subsidiaries, and a joint venture.  All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The wholly owned subsidiaries of Syntel, Inc. are:

• Syntel Limited (“Syntel India”), an Indian limited liability company formerly known as Syntel (India) Ltd.; 

• Syntel Singapore PTE., Ltd. (“Syntel Singapore”), a Singapore limited liability company; 

• Syntel Europe, Ltd. (“Syntel U.K.”), a United Kingdom limited liability company;  

• Syntel Canada, Inc. (“Syntel Canada”), an Ontario limited liability company; 

• Syntel Deutschland GmbH (“Syntel Germany”), a German limited liability company; 

• Syntel Hong Kong, Ltd. (“Syntel Hong Kong”), a Hong Kong limited liability company; 

• Syntel (Australia) Pty. Limited (“Syntel Australia”), an Australian limited liability company; 

• Syntel Delaware LLC (“Syntel Delaware”), a Delaware limited liability company; 

• SkillBay LLC (“SkillBay”), a Michigan limited liability company; 

• Syntel (Mauritius) Limited (“Syntel Mauritius”), a Mauritius limited liability company; and

• Syntel Consulting, Inc. (“Syntel Consulting”), a Michigan limited liability company.

The formerly wholly-owned subsidiary of Syntel Delaware LLC (as of December 31, 2004) that became a partially owned joint 
venture of Syntel Delaware LLC on February 1, 2005 is:

• Syntel Solutions (Mauritius) Ltd. (“Syntel Solutions”), a Mauritius limited liability company. 

The wholly-owned subsidiary of Syntel Solutions is:

• Syntel Sourcing Pvt. Ltd. (“Syntel Sourcing”), an Indian limited liability company. 

The wholly-owned subsidiaries of Syntel Mauritius are:

• Syntel International Pvt. Ltd. (“Syntel International”), an Indian limited liability company; and

• Syntel Global Pvt. Ltd. (“Syntel Global”), an Indian limited liability company.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company recognizes revenues from time-and-material contracts as the services are performed. 

Revenue from fixed-price applications management, maintenance and support engagements is recognized as earned, which 
generally results in straight-line revenue recognition as services are performed continuously over the term of the engagement.

Revenue on fixed-price, applications development and integration projects in the Company’s application outsourcing and 
e-Business segments are measured using the proportional performance method of accounting.  Performance is generally 
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measured based upon the efforts incurred to date in relation to the total estimated efforts to the completion of the contract. 
The Company monitors estimates of total contract revenues and cost on a routine basis throughout the delivery period.  
The cumulative impact of any change in estimates of the contract revenues or costs is reflected in the period in which the 
changes become known. In the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is made for the estimated 
loss.  The Company issues invoices related to fixed-price contracts based on either the achievement of milestones during a 
project or other contractual terms. Differences between the timing of billings and the recognition of revenue based upon the 
proportional performance method of accounting are recorded as revenue earned in excess of billings or deferred revenue in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Revenues are reported net of sales incentives.

Reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses are included in revenue in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Consensus 
(“EITF”) 01-14, “Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursement Received for ‘Out-of-Pocket’ Expenses Incurred”. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of reporting Cash and Cash Equivalents, the Company considers all liquid investments purchased with an 
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, approximately $29.1 million 
and $29.1 million, respectively, represent corporate bonds and treasury notes held by Bank One, for which “AAA” rated letters 
of credit have been provided by the bank. The remaining amounts of cash and cash equivalents are invested in money market 
accounts with various banking and financial institutions.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The fair values of the Company’s current assets and current liabilities approximate their carrying values due to their short 
maturities.  Such financial instruments are classified as current and are expected to be liquidated within the next twelve months.  

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of investments 
and accounts receivable. Cash on deposit is held with financial institutions with high credit standings. The Company has cash 
deposited with financial institutions which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.

Our customer base consists primarily of Global 2000 companies, and accordingly our accounts receivable, is not exposed to 
significant credit risk.  The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts as a provision for known and inherent 
collection risks related to its accounts receivable. The estimation of the provision is primarily based on our assessment of the 
probable collection from specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable, analysis of credit data, bad debt 
write-offs, and other known factors.  

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The Company’s short-term investments consist of short-term mutual funds, which have been classified as available-for-sale 
and are carried at estimated fair value. Fair value is determined based on quoted market prices. Unrealized gains and losses, net 
of taxes, on available-for-sale securities are reported as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) in shareholders’ equity. Net realized gains or losses resulting from the sale of these investments, and losses resulting 
from decline in fair values of these investments that are other than temporary declines, are included in other income. The cost of 
securities sold is determined on the weighted average method.

Investments include Term deposits with original maturity exceeding three months and whose maturity date is within one year 
from the date of the balance sheet.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal 
of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews its long-lived assets (other than goodwill) for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. When factors indicate that 
such costs should be evaluated for possible impairment, we assess the recoverability of the long-lived assets (other than 
goodwill) by comparing the estimated undiscounted cash flows associated with the related asset or group of assets against 
their respective carrying amounts. The amount of an impairment charge, if any, is calculated based on the excess of the carrying 
amount over the fair value of those assets.  Management believes no assets were impaired at December 31, 2004.

OTHER INCOME

Other income includes interest and dividend income, gains and losses from sale of securities and other investments.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Depreciation is 
computed primarily using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:
             Years

Computer equipment and software 3

Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 7

Vehicles 3

Leasehold improvements Life of lease

Leasehold land Life of lease 

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $3.1 million, $2.5 million and 
$2.2 million, respectively.  
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GOODWILL 

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In accordance with 
SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer amortized, but is evaluated for impairment at least annually.  

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting periods.  Such estimates include, but are not limited to, allowance for doubtful accounts, impairment of 
goodwill, contingencies and litigation, the recognition of revenues and profits based on the proportional performance method 
and potential tax liabilities.  Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the 
accompanying financial statements.

During 2004, the Company provided $0.4 million towards allowance for doubtful accounts. At December 31, 2004 and 
2003, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $1.2 million and $0.8 million, respectively. These estimates are based on our 
assessment of the probable collection from specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable, analysis of credit 
data, bad debt write-offs and other known factors. 

During 2004, the Company has reversed $1.7 million of the tax provision related to the year 2000 and credited it to the current 
period’s income tax expenses. In determining the tax provisions, the Company also provides for tax contingencies based on 
the Company’s assessment of future regulatory reviews of filed tax returns. Such reserves, which are recorded in income taxes 
payable, are based on management’s estimates and accordingly are subject to revision based on additional information. The 
provision no longer required for any particular tax year, is credited to the current period’s income tax expenses. 

In addition, during 2004 Syntel India accounted for a credit of approximately $0.5 million in U.S. branch profit taxes related to 
prior periods up to June 30, 2004. 

The revision in estimates noted above had an after-tax impact of increasing the diluted earnings per share for the year ended 
December 31, 2004 by $0.05 per share. 

During 2003, in connection with settlements and other changes in estimates for underlying litigation and related legal costs, 
the Company reduced its  accrued liabilities and Métier related liabilities by $2.9 million, net of amounts paid. The Company also 
reduced its allowance for doubtful accounts by $0.5 million primarily on account of the successful collection of overdue debts. 
Also, in 2003 management revised its  estimate of 2002 bonus compensation and reversed $0.8 million of previously recorded 
accruals. The revision, in estimates noted above, had an after tax impact of increasing the diluted earnings per share for the year 
ended December 31, 2003 by $0.06 per share. 

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries use the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which they operate as its functional currency.  Revenues, costs and expenses of the foreign subsidiaries are translated to 
U.S. dollars at average period exchange rates.  Assets and liabilities are translated to U.S. dollars at period-end exchange 
rates with the effects of these cumulative translation adjustments being reported as a separate component of accumulated 
other comprehensive income  in shareholders’ equity.  Transaction gains and losses, which were not significant in the years 
presented, are reflected within ‘Selling, general and administrative expenses’ in the consolidated statements of income.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per share.”

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
applicable period.

The Company has stock options, which are considered to be potentially dilutive to the basic earnings per share. Diluted earnings 
per share is calculated using the treasury stock method for the dilutive effect of shares that have been granted pursuant to the 
stock option plan, by dividing the net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period adjusted 
for these potentially dilutive options, except when the results would be anti-dilutive. The potential tax benefits on exercise of stock 
options is considered as additional proceeds while computing dilutive earnings per share using the treasury stock method.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement plan that covers all regular employees on Syntel’s U.S. payroll. Eligible employees 
may contribute up to 15 percent of their compensation, subject to certain limitations, to the retirement plan. The Company 
may make contributions to the plans at the discretion of our Board of Directors; however, through December 31, 2004, no 
contributions have been made.

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits under the Provident Fund (“PF”), which is a defined contribution plan. Both 
the employee and the Company make monthly contributions equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. 
The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions.  These contributions are made to the 
fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The Company’s monthly contributions are charged to income in 
the period they are incurred.

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 of India, the Indian subsidiary provides for gratuity, a defined retirement 
benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, based on the respective employee’s salary and 
the tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation and are charged to 
income in the period determined. The Gratuity Plan is a non-funded plan. The amounts accrued under this plan are $0.7 million 
and $0.7 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and are included within ‘Accrued payroll and related costs.’
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VACATION PAY

The accrual for vacation pay is determined for the entire available leave balance standing to the credit of the employees at year-
end and eligible for carry-forward, valued at gross compensation rates.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to measure stock-based compensation cost using the intrinsic value 
method, in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and has adopted the disclosure 
requirements of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB 
Statement No. 123.” Had the fair value of each stock option granted been determined consistent with the methodology of SFAS 
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the pro forma impact on the Company’s net income and earnings per 
share is as follows:
 (In thousands, except share data)

  YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 2003 2002 
 
Pro forma net income           

 Net income as reported     $ 40,974 $ 40,304 $ 32,486

 Stock-based compensation expenses recognized in 
 statement of income, net of tax      713  —  —

 Stock-based compensation expense determined under 
 the fair value method, net of tax       (1,642)  (1,216)  (1,787)

 Pro forma net income     $ 40,045 $ 39,088 $ 30,699

Earnings per share as reported      

 Basic     $ 1.02 $ 1.02 $ 0.84

 Diluted      1.01  0.99  0.81

Earnings per share, pro forma     

 Basic      $ 1.00 $ 0.99 $ 0.79

 Diluted      0.99  0.96  0.77

Weighted average common shares outstanding     

 Basic      40,216  39,609  38,733

 Diluted      40,469  40,797  39,917

Estimated fair value of options granted     $ 5.78 $ 5.61 $ 5.86

Under SFAS No. 123, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option-pricing model with the following assumptions for grants:

Risk-free interest rate      3.72%  3.35%  3.25%

Expected life      5.00  5.00  5.00

Expected volatility      71.94%  75.80%  79.16%

Expected dividend yield      1.37%  0.97%  0.00%

INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the 
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.  Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax laws is 
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current 
year’s presentation.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

In December 2004, SFAS 123 No.(R) was issued, which replaces SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, 
and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS No. 123(R) requires compensation 
costs relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements. The pro forma disclosure previously 
permitted under SFAS No. 123 will no longer be an acceptable alternative to recognition of expenses in the financial statements. 
SFAS No. 123(R) is effective as of the beginning of the first reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005, with early adoption 
encouraged. The Company currently measures compensation costs related to share-based payments under APB Opinion 
No. 25, as allowed by SFAS No. 123, and provides disclosure in notes to financial statements as required by SFAS No. 123. 
The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) starting from the third quarter of 2005. We expect the adoption of SFAS 
No. 123(R) will have a material adverse impact on our net income and net income per share. The Company is currently in the 
process of evaluating the extent of such impact. 

In December 2004, SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets—an amendment to APB Opinion No. 29” was issued. This 
statement amends APB Opinion No. 29 to eliminate the exception for non-monetary exchanges of similar productive assets and 
replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of non-monetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A non-monetary 
exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the 
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exchange. Adoption of this statement is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations or financial condition. 

In December 2004, FASB Staff Position No. FAS 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings 
Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“FSP FAS 109-2”) was issued, providing guidance 
under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” for recording the potential impact of the repatriation provisions of the 
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, enacted on October 22, 2004. FSP FAS 109-2 allows time beyond the financial reporting 
period of enactment to evaluate the effects of the Jobs Act before applying the requirements of FSP FAS 109-2. Accordingly, 
we are evaluating the potential effects of the Jobs Act and have not adjusted our tax expense or deferred tax liability to reflect 
the requirements of FSP FAS 109-2. 

3. ACQUISITIONS

MÉTIER, INC.

During 1999, the Company acquired substantially all the business and assets of Métier, Inc. The consideration for the Métier 
acquisition in 1999 included a $1.6 million dollar payment to the Métier shareholders, which was to be made in April 2000, and 
300,000 shares of Syntel Common Stock, which were to be issued in September 2000. During 2000, the Company entered into 
litigation with the former shareholders of Métier, and consequently, the $1.6 million dollar payment was not made and the 300,000 
shares were not issued. In April 2002, the Company reached a resolution with the Métier shareholders wherein the $1.6 million 
dollar payment was not made, the 300,000 shares were not issued and the Company paid $2.3 million in settlement and legal 
costs. Additionally, during the last quarter of 2002, the Company also settled certain of the Métier related and other litigation and 
in connection with these settlements, the Company reversed an accrual of approximately $5.7 million of the accrued Métier liability 
during 2002 having an earnings per share impact of $0.08 per share.  The final settlements relating to the Métier liability were 
made during the third quarter of 2003 and, accordingly, the remaining accrual of approximately $0.9 million was also reversed. 

IMG, INC.

During 1999, the Company acquired the business and assets of IMG, Inc.  This acquisition resulted in goodwill of $1.1 million 
that has been allocated to the e-Business reporting unit.  In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142 the Company 
evaluates the carrying value of goodwill as of June 30 every year.  The Company has determined that the goodwill has not been 
impaired and, consequently, no impairment has been recorded during the years 2004 or 2003.

4. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments included the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003: 
 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003     2002 

Investments in marketable securities at carrying value $ 36,106 $ 26,137  —

Term deposits with banks  22,793  7,845  —

Total short-term investments $ 58,899 $ 33,982  —

a) Investment in marketable securities (primarily Indian Mutual Funds) included the following at December 31, 2004, 
2003 and 2002:
 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003     2002 

Cost   $ 35,456 $ 25,220  —

Unrealized gain, net  650  917  —

Carrying value $ 36,106  $ 26,137  —

Gross realized gains $ 2,049 $ 1,015 $ 734 

Gross realized losses  —  —  (7)

Dividend income  —  —  84

Proceeds on sale of securities   65,866   33,924  28,084

Purchase of securities  72,825  52,313  15,228

b) Investment in term deposits with banks included the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003     2002 

Cost   $ 22,793 $ 7,845  —

Maturities of term deposits  7,394   2,162  —

Purchase of term deposits $ 21,516 $ —  —

5. STOCK WARRANTS SALES INCENTIVE

During 2002, the Company granted to a significant customer immediately exercisable warrants entitling the customer to 
purchase 322,210 shares of the Company’s stock at an exercise price of $7.25 per share.  The stated exercise price was based 
upon the customer achieving a specified minimum level of purchases of services (the “Performance Milestone”) from the 
Company over a specified performance period ended on October 16, 2003.  The customer exercised the warrant in February 
2003 and received 209,739 shares in a cashless exercise. 
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The customer earned the sales incentive as they met the performance milestone over the specified performance period ended 
on October 16, 2003.

In accordance with EITF 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s 
Products,” the Company has recorded the value of sales incentive as a reduction of revenues, to the extent of revenues earned 
up to October 16, 2003.  

The measurement of the sales incentive, which previously was based on the market value of the Company’s stock at each 
period end, was finalized based on sale of the shares in the quarter ended September 30, 2003 by the customer at an average 
sale price of $22.31. Accordingly, the final value of the sales incentive was $4.7 million. Cumulatively, the Company had 
recorded $2.9 million of the sales incentive as a reduction of revenue up to December 31, 2002. The remaining sales incentive of 
$1.8 million was recorded during the year 2003. 

The Company has also granted the same customer certain additional performance warrants at significantly higher performance 
milestones. The Company has estimated that such higher performance milestones will not be met.  Accordingly, the Company 
has not accounted for these performance warrants. If and when the Company estimates that such higher performance 
milestones will be met, the sales incentive associated with the performance warrants will be recorded as a reduction of revenue.

6. REVENUE EARNED IN EXCESS OF BILLINGS AND DEFERRED REVENUE 

Revenue earned in excess of billings consists of:
 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003

Unbilled revenue for time-and-material projects $ 2,144  $ 2,427 

Unbilled revenue for fixed price projects  2,246   3,897

   $ 4,390 $ 6,324

Deferred revenue consists of:
 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003

Deferred revenue on uncompleted fixed price development contracts $ 4,123 $ 3,801 

Advance billing on applications management and support contracts  1,025  378

Other deferred revenue  83  — 

   $ 5,231 $ 4,179 

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at December 31, 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:
 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003

Computer equipment and software $ 17,651 $ 14,657

Furniture, fixtures and other equipment  9,966  7,590

Vehicles  1,032  587

Leasehold improvements  1,499  1,244

Leasehold land   1,856  1,282

Capital advances / work in progress  5,750  257

    37,754  25,617

Accumulated depreciation and amortization  21,290  18,502

   $ 16,464 $ 7,115

  
8. LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has a line of credit with Bank One, which provides for borrowings up to $20.0 million. The line of credit has been 
renewed and now expires on August 31, 2005. The line of credit contains covenants restricting the Company from, among 
other things, incurring additional debt, issuing guarantees and creating liens on the Company’s property, without the prior 
consent of the bank. The line of credit also requires the Company to maintain certain tangible net worth levels and leverage 
ratios. The line of credit has a sub-limit of $5.0 million for letters of credit, which bear a fee of 1 percent per annum of the face 
value of each standby letter of credit issued. Borrowings under the line of credit bear interest at (i) a formula approximating the 
Eurodollar rate plus the applicable margin of 1.25 percent, (ii) the bank’s prime rate minus 1.0 percent or (iii) negotiated rate plus 
1.25 percent. No borrowings were outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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9. LEASES

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases.  Current operating lease obligations are expected 
to be renewed or replaced upon expiration.  Future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable leases expiring beyond 
one year as of December 31, 2004 are as follows:
 (In thousands)

2005     $ 2,373

2006      2,311           

2007      1,773

2008        1,689

2009        1,666

                         $ 9,812
   
Total rent expense amounted to approximately $2.2 million, $2.6 million and $2.4 million for the years ended December 31, 
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

10.  INCOME TAXES 

Income before income taxes for the Company’s U.S. and foreign operations was as follows:
 (In thousands)

       2004  2003  2002 

U.S.   $ 12,147 $ 15,168 $ 21,357

Foreign   34,080  38,412  23,608

   $ 46,227 $ 53,580 $ 44,965

The provision for income taxes is as follows:
 (In thousands)

       2004  2003  2002 

Current    

   Federal $ 1,672 $ 3,947 $ 7,389

   State   305  720  1,348

   Foreign  2,175  4,635  3,946

 Total current provision  4,152  9,302  12,683

Deferred   

   Federal  221  3,332  (292)

   State    40  608  (53)

   Foreign  840  —  — 

 Total deferred provision (benefit)  1,101  3,940  (345)

Total provision for income taxes $ 5,253 $ 13,242 $ 12,338

The components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows:
 (In thousands)

       2004  2003

Deferred tax assets  

   Impairment of investments and capitalized development costs  $ 1,814 $ 2,632

   Property, plant and equipment  149  —

   Accrued expenses and allowances  1,717  1,109

   Advanced billing receipts  602  211

 Total deferred tax assets  4,282  3,952

Deferred tax liabilities  

   Provision for branch tax on dividend equivalent in India   (1,183)  —

   Provision for tax on unrealized gains in India  (102) 

    Total deferred tax liabilities  (1,285)  —

Net deferred tax assets $ 2,997 $ 3,952

  

Balance sheet classification of the net deferred tax asset is summarized as follows:
 (In thousands)

       2004  2003

Deferred tax asset, current $ 1,895  $ 1,300

Deferred tax asset, non-current  1,102  2,652

   $ 2,997 $ 3,952
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Syntel’s software development centers/units are located in Mumbai, Chennai and Pune. Units in Mumbai are located in a Special 
Economic Zone (SEZ), the unit at Chennai is 100 percent Export Oriented Unit (EOU) and units at Pune are registered with 
Software Technologies Park of India (STPI). Under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 (the “Act”), 100 percent EOUs at Chennai, 
units registered with STPI at Pune and certain units located in SEZ are eligible for an exemption from payment of corporate 
income taxes for up to 10 years of operations on the profits generated from these undertakings or March 31, 2009, whichever 
is earlier. Certain units located in SEZ are eligible for 100 percent exemption from payment of corporate taxes for the first five 
years of operation and a 50 percent exemption for the next five years. 

With effect from April 1, 2003 one of the Company’s Software Development Units has ceased to enjoy the above-mentioned 
tax exemption. Provision for Indian Income Tax is made only in respect of business profits generated from this software 
development unit, to the extent they are not covered by the above exemptions and on income from investments and 
interest income.

The benefit of the tax holiday granted by the Indian authorities was $7.6 million, $9.1 million and $5.9 million for the years 2004, 
2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company intends to use accumulated and future earnings of foreign subsidiaries to expand operations outside the 
United States and accordingly undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely reinvested outside 
the United States, and no provision for U.S. federal and state income tax or applicable dividend distribution tax has been 
provided thereon. 

However, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“the Jobs Act”), enacted on October 22, 2004, provides for reduced U.S. 
income tax rates for repatriation of foreign earnings that occurs prior to December 31, 2005. While the company has no current 
plans for the repatriation of foreign earnings, the company is evaluating the potential effects of the Jobs Act and foreign 
laws that might effect any such repatriation. If the company determined to repatriate all undistributed repatriable earnings of 
foreign subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 (without considering the Jobs Act provisions), the company would have accrued 
taxes of approximately $52.8 million.  If the company determined to repatriate all undistributed repatriable earnings of foreign 
subsidiaries (under the Jobs Act), the company would accrue taxes, which would be material in amount, but significantly less 
than $52.8 million mentioned above.

The following table accounts for the differences between the actual tax provision and the amounts obtained by applying the 
statutory U.S. federal income tax rate of 35 percent to income before income taxes:

 (In thousands)

       2004  2003  2002 

Income before income taxes $ 46,227 $ 53,580 $ 44,965

Statutory provision  35.0%  35.0%  35.0%

State taxes, net of federal benefit  1.0%  1.0%  1.7%

Tax-free investment income  (0.4%)  (0.6%)  (0.9%)

Foreign effective tax rates different from US Statutory Rate   (19.3%)  (16.4%)  (9.6%)

Tax reserves   (3.8%)  5.7%  1.6%

Other, net  (1.1%)  0.0%  (0.4%)

Total provision  11.4%  24.7%  27.4%

The Company records provisions for income taxes based on enacted tax laws and rates in the various taxing jurisdictions in 
which it operates. In determining the tax provisions, the Company also provides for tax contingencies based on the Company’s 
assessment of future regulatory reviews of filed tax returns. Such reserves, which are recorded in income taxes payable, are 
based on management’s estimates and accordingly are subject to revision based on additional information.  The provision no 
longer required for any particular tax year is credited to the current period’s income tax expenses. 

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company has reversed $1.7 million of such tax provision related to the year 
2000 and credited it to the current year’s income tax expenses. During the year ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the 
effective income tax rate was 11.4 percent, 24.7 percent and 27.4 percent, respectively. The effective income tax rate during 
the year ended December 31, 2004, without adjusting the above-mentioned reversal, the tax credit of $0.5 million in Syntel 
India and the research and development tax credit of $0.5 million in Syntel Inc., was 17.3 percent. The tax rate continues to be 
positively impacted by the combined effects of offshore transition and reduced on-site profitability. 

Syntel India has not provided for disputed Indian income tax liabilities aggregating $2.18 million for the financial years 1995-96 
to 2000-01. Syntel India has obtained an opinion from one independent legal counsel  (former Chief Justice of the Supreme 
Court of India) for the financial year 1998-99 and two opinions from another independent legal counsel (also a former Chief 
Justice of the Supreme Court of India) for the financial years 1999-2000 and 2000-01, which support Syntel India’s stand in this 
matter. During the second quarter of 2004, Syntel India also obtained opinions from the said legal counsel for the periods 1995-
96 to 1997-98 and periods beginning with financial year 2001-02 to date, which also support Syntel India’s stand in this matter. 

Syntel India had filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) for the financial year 1998-99 and received a 
favorable decision. However the Income Tax Department has appealed this favorable decision with the Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal. A similar appeal filed by Syntel India with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) for the financial year 1999-2000 
was however dismissed in March 2004. Syntel India has appealed this decision with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. Syntel 
India has since also received orders for appeals filed with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the demands raised 
in March 2004 by the Income Tax Officer for similar matters relating to the financial years 1995-96, 1996-97, 1997-98 and 



26 Syntel Annual Report 27Syntel Annual Report

2000-01 and received a favorable decision for 1995-96, and for the other three years the contention of Syntel India is partially 
upheld.  Syntel India has gone into further appeal with the Income tax Appellate Tribunal for the amounts not allowed by the 
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

Further, Syntel India has received demand for interest amounting to $0.019 million and $0.013 million for late payment of 
demand pertaining to the financial year 2000-01 and 1999-00, respectively, against which Syntel India had filed appeals with 
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).  The said appeals have been dismissed. Syntel India is in the process of filing petition 
with Chief Commissioner of Income Tax.

On February 28, 2005, Syntel India has received a demand from the Indian income tax authorities for Indian income tax of 
$3.403 million for the financial year 2001-02. Out of this amount Syntel India has not provided for $2.968 million. Syntel India 
has obtained an opinion from an independent legal counsel (former Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of India) supporting 
Syntel India’s position for an item of dispute amounting to $0.386 million. For the other items of dispute, Syntel India has 
obtained an opinion from another independent legal counsel (former Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of India), which 
supports Syntel India’s stand in this matter. Further, Syntel India is in the process of filing an appeal with the Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeals). 

All above tax exposures involve complex issues and may need an extended period to resolve the issues with Indian income 
tax authorities.

TAX CREDIT

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the provision for income tax was reduced by research and development tax credits 
claimed.  The tax credits relate to increased qualified expenditures for software development. The Company recently completed 
a review of such qualified expenditures and filed refund claims for the tax years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 
2002. The appropriate tax benefit for these years has been recorded currently in conjunction with the completion of the review. 
This tax credit had a positive impact of $0.5 million on taxes. 

In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2004 Syntel India has accounted for a credit of approximately $0.5 million in 
respect of U.S. branch profit taxes related to prior periods up to June 30, 2004 and also reclassified in the balance sheet $1.0 
million from provision for income taxes to deferred tax liability.

11.  EARNINGS PER SHARE

The reconciliation of earnings per share computations for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

 (In thousands, except share data)

       2004  2003  2002 
       
  Per  Per  Per
 Shares Share Shares  Share Shares  Share

Basic earnings per share (1) 40,216 $ 1.02 39,609 $ 1.02 38,733 $ 0.84

Potential dilutive effect of stock options 
and warrants outstanding 253  (0.01) 1,188  (0.03) 1,184  (.03)

   40,469 $ 1.01 40,797 $ 0.99 39,917 $ 0.81

(1) Represents weighted average number of common shares

As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, stock options to purchase 135,700, 44,500 and –0- shares of Common Stock, 
respectively, at a weighted average price per share of $24.13, $25.00 and $-0-, respectively, were outstanding but were not 
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share.  The options’ exercise price was greater than the average market 
price of the common shares and was anti-dilutive. 

12.  DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors at its meeting on March 3, 2005 has declared a special dividend of $1.50 per share payable to Syntel 
shareholders of record at the close of business on March 14, 2005. The dividend is payable on March 31, 2005.

The shareholders of record as of December 31, 2004 have been paid $0.06 per share on January 14, 2005.  

The Board of Directors at its meeting in July 2003 declared a one-time special dividend of $1.25 per share payable to Syntel 
shareholders of record at the close of business on August 29, 2003, which was paid on September 12, 2003. 

In addition, the Board of Directors at the same meeting approved the initiation of quarterly cash dividends. The initial dividend 
rate will be $0.06 per share per quarter. 

Per share dividends paid for the year 2004 were $0.24.  During the year 2003 and 2002, $1.31 and $-0-, respectively per share 
dividends were paid.

13.  STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company established a stock option plan in 1997 under which three million shares of Common Stock were reserved for 
issuance.  The dates on which granted options are first exercisable are determined by the Compensation Committee of the 
Board of Directors, but generally vest over a four-year period from the date of grant.  The term of any option may not exceed ten 
years from the date of grant. 
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For certain options granted during 1997, the exercise price was less than the fair value of the Company’s stock on the date 
of grant and, accordingly, compensation expense was being recognized over the vesting period for such difference.  For the 
options granted thereafter, the Company grants the options at the fair market value on the date of grant of the options.  The 
Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for this plan. In accordance with APB Opinion 
No. 25, no compensation cost would need to be recognized for the options granted post 1998 as the exercise price equaled the 
fair value of value of the shares on the date of the grant.

Stock option activity during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

  Weighted
 Number Average
 of Shares Price

Shares under option  

  Outstanding, January 1, 2002  2,748,296 $ 7.68

Activity during 2002  

Granted, price equals fair value  674,598  12.31

 Exercised  853,083  7.14

 Forfeited  223,629  9.19

 Expired  7,708  8.38

  Outstanding, December 31, 2002  2,338,474  9.07

Activity during 2003  

Granted, price equals fair value  273,250  18.90

 Exercised  694,858  8.39

 Forfeited  587,127  11.55

 Expired  14,329  10.92

  Outstanding, December 31, 2003  1,315,410  10.33

Activity during 2004  

Granted, price equals fair value  85,711  25.33

 Exercised  264,613  8.01

 Forfeited  247,352  15.95

 Expired  5,833  7.74

  Outstanding, December 31,2004  883,323  10.93

  Exercisable, December 31, 2002  495,418 $ 7.61

  Exercisable, December 31, 2003  379,672 $ 7.94

  Exercisable, December 31, 2004  400,830 $ 8.38

The following tables sets forth details of options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2004:

 Options Outstanding Options Exercisable   

  Weighted Weighted  Weighted
  Average Average  Average
 Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price

$3.3191 - $6.6380 309,774 5.90 $ 5.07 140,317 $ 5.12

$6.6381 - $9.9570 209,531 5.10  8.29 175,320  8.31

$9.9571 - $13.2760 85,368 6.50  11.59 44,268  11.42

$13.2761 - $16.5950 142,350 7.50  14.53 30,475  14.40

$16.5951 - $19.9140 11,600 7.30  18.88 3,000  18.77

$19.9141 - $23.2330 25,700 9.20  21.40 —  —

$23.2331 - $26.5520 81,500 8.80  24.25 7,450  24.63

$26.5521 - $29.8710 17,500 9.10  28.25 —  —

 883,323 6.50 $ 10.93 400,830 $ 8.38

The Company has an employee stock purchase plan, which provides for employees to purchase pre-established amounts of 
the Company’s Common Stock as determined by the compensation committee.  The price at which employees may purchase 
Common Stock is set by the compensation committee as not less than the lesser of 85 percent of the fair market value of the 
Common Stock on the NASDAQ National Market on the first day of the purchase period or 85 percent of the fair market value 
of the Common Stock on the last day of the purchase period.  The Company has reserved 1.5 million shares of Common Stock 
for issuance under the Company’s employee stock purchase plan.  Under the terms of the plan, eligible employees may elect to 
have up to 5 percent of their regular base earnings withheld to purchase company stock, with a maximum contribution value, 
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which may not exceed $21,250 for each calendar year in which a purchase period occurs.  As of December 31, 2004 and 2003 
the Company has $0.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively of employee withholdings included in accrued payroll and related 
costs in the balance sheet to be used to purchase company stock. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, 848,899 and 917,218 
shares of Common Stock were available under the plan.

RESTRICTED STOCK

On different dates during the quarter ended June 30, 2004, the Company issued 319,300 shares of incentive restricted stock to 
its non-employee directors and some employees as well as to some employees of its subsidiaries. The stocks were granted to 
employees for their future services as a retention tool at a zero exercise price, with the restrictions on transferability lapsing with 
regard to 10, 20, 30, and 40 percent of the shares issued on or after the first, second, third and fourth anniversary of the grant 
dates, respectively.  

Based upon the market value on the grant dates, the Company recorded $5.83 million of unearned compensation during the 
quarter ended June 30, 2004, included as a separate component of shareholders’ equity to be expensed over the four year’s 
service period on a straight line basis. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company reversed $0.40 million of 
unearned compensation towards forfeiture of restricted stock on account of termination of employees and expensed $0.83 
million as compensation cost on account of these stock grants. 

The recipients are also eligible for dividends declared on their restricted stock. The dividends paid on shares of unvested 
restricted stock are charged to compensation cost. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company recorded $0.05 million 
as compensation cost for dividends paid on shares of unvested restricted stock. 

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Syntel’s subsidiaries have commitments for capital expenditures (net of advances) of $9.7 million, primarily related to the 
technology Campus being constructed at Pune, India, as of December 31, 2004. 

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to litigation and claims, which have arisen in the normal course of their activities.  
Although the amount of the Company’s ultimate liability, if any, with respect to these matters cannot be determined with 
reasonable certainty, management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that the resolution of such matters will not 
have a material adverse effect upon the Company’s consolidated financial position.

Syntel India’s operations are carried out from their development centers/units in Mumbai forming part of a Special Economic 
Zone (‘SEZ’) and in Chennai and Pune, which are registered under the Software Technology Parks (‘STP’) scheme.  Under these 
schemes the registered units have export obligations, which are based on the formula provided by the notifications/circulars 
issued by the STP and SEZ authorities from time to time.  The consequence of not meeting the above commitments would be 
a retroactive levy of import duty on items previously imported duty-free for these units.  Additionally, the respective authorities 
have rights to levy penalties for any defaults on a case-by-case basis.  The Company is confident of meeting these obligations.  

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Provident Fund Contribution expense recognized by Syntel India was $0.5 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Expense recognized by Syntel India under the Gratuity Plan was $0.02 million, $0.3 million, and $0.2 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

16. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003  2002 

Balance, beginning of year $ 809 $ 3,551 $ 6,004

Provisions (reductions), net   400  (493)  518

Write-offs  (27)  (2,267)  (3,071)

Others    31  18  100

Balance, end of year $ 1,213 $ 809 $ 3,551

17. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprises and Related Information,” which 
requires reporting information about operating segments in annual financial statements. It has also established standards for 
related disclosures about its business segments and geographic areas. Operating segments are defined as components of an 
enterprise about which separate financial information is available.  This information is reviewed and evaluated regularly by the 
management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing the performance. 

The Company is organized geographically and by business segment.  For management purpose, the Company is primarily 
organized on a worldwide basis into four business segments: 

• Applications Outsourcing

• e-Business

• TeamSourcing

• Business Process Outsourcing (BPO)
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These segments are the basis on which the Company reports its primary segment information to the management.

Through Applications Outsourcing, the Company provides higher-value applications management services for ongoing 
management, development and maintenance of customers’ business applications. 

Through e-Business, the Company provides development and implementation services for a number of emerging and rapidly 
growing high technology applications, including Web Development, Data Warehousing, e-Commerce, Customer Relationship 
Management, Oracle and SAP; as well as partnership agreements with software providers.  

Through TeamSourcing, the Company provides professional information technology consulting services directly to customers 
on a staff augmentation basis.  TeamSourcing services include systems specification, design, development, implementation 
and maintenance of complex information technology applications involving diverse computer hardware, software, data and 
networking technologies and practices.  

Through BPO, Syntel provides outsourced solutions for a client’s business processes, providing them with the advantage of a 
low cost position and process enhancement through optimal use of technology. Syntel uses a proprietary tool called IdenteonTM 
to assist with strategic assessments of business processes and identifying the right ones for outsourcing.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those presented in Note - 2.  Management allocates all corporate 
expenses to the segments. No balance sheet/identifiable assets data is presented since the Company does not segregate its 
assets by segment.

 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003  2002 

Net revenues   

 Applications Outsourcing $ 143,007 $ 136,424 $ 113,981

 e-Business  29,249  33,795  31,951

 TeamSourcing  12,480  9,288  15,575

 BPO  1,837  —  —

    186,573  179,507  161,507

Gross profit   

  Applications Outsourcing  62,696  62,282  54,053

  e-Business  11,302  14,389  11,429

  TeamSourcing  4,598  1,137  2,015

 BPO  857  —  —

      79,453  77,808  67,497

Selling, general and administrative expenses  36,999  28,278  31,421 

Reduction in reserve requirements for Métier transaction  —  (882)  (5,698)

Income from operations $ 42,454 $ 50,412 $ 41,774 

The Company’s largest customer in 2004, 2003 and 2002 was American Express, which was the only customer who 
accounted for revenues in excess of 10 percent of total consolidated revenues. Revenue from this customer was approximately 
$29.4 million, $28.8 million and $28.6 million, contributing approximately 16 percent, 16 percent and 18 percent of total 
consolidated revenues during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. At December 31, 2004 and 2003 accounts receivable from 
this customer were $1.5 million and $2.0, respectively. All revenue from this customer was generated in the Applications 
Outsourcing segment.



30 Syntel Annual Report 31Syntel Annual Report

18. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Customers of the Company are primarily situated in the United States. Net revenues and net income (loss) from each 
geographic location were as follows:

 (In thousands)

   YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,  2004  2003  2002 

Net revenues    

 North America, primarily United States $ 167,240 $ 163,121 $ 148,326

 India   90,230  71,823  43,891

 UK   13,410  15,303  12,182

 Far East, primarily Singapore  1,501  907  830

 Germany  2,692  720  85

 Inter-company revenue elimination (primarily India)  (88,500)  (72,367)  (43,807)

 Net revenues $ 186,573 $ 179,507 $ 161,507 

Net income (loss)     

 North America, primarily United States  $ 10,459 $ 6,650 $ 12,824

  India   28,831  33,168  19,808

 UK   1,732  895  324

 Far East, primarily Singapore   194  (114)  (32)

 Germany   (242)  (295)  (438)

 Net income  $ 40,974 $ 40,304 $ 32,486 

Assets, December 31    

 North America, primarily United States $ 110,613 $ 99,740 $ 125,932

 India   106,014  75,754  50,447

 UK  8,892  9,015  6,808

 Far East, primarily Singapore   560  80  363

 Germany   889  609  22

  Total assets $ 226,968 $ 185,198 $ 183,572



30 Syntel Annual Report 31Syntel Annual Report

 

19. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Selected financial data by calendar quarter were as follows:
 (In thousands, except share data)

 First Second Third Fourth Full
 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2004         

Net revenues  $ 45,089   $ 45,846  $ 46,602 $ 49,036 $ 186,573

Cost of revenues     26,085  26,234  27,014  27,787  107,120

 Gross profit  19,004  19,612  19,588  21,249  79,453 

Selling, general and administrative expenses  8,839  8,822  8,850  10,488  36,999

 Income from operations  10,165  10,790  10,738  10,761  42,454 

Other income, principally interest  996  357  753  1,667  3,773

 Income before income taxes  11,161  11,147  11,491  12,428  46,227 

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes   1,839  1,742  (402)  2,074  5,253

 Net income $ 9,322 $ 9,405 $ 11,893 $ 10,354 $ 40,974 

Earnings per share, diluted (c) $ 0.23 $ 0.23 $ 0.29 $ 0.26 $ 1.01

Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted  40,614  40,510  40,335  40,416  40,469

         

2003         

Net revenues (a) $ 44,078 $ 43,915 $ 44,105 $ 47,409 $ 179,507

Cost of revenues   25,080  24,156  25,738  26,725  101,699

 Gross profit  18,998  19,759  18,367  20,684  77,808

Selling, general and administrative expenses (b)  7,889  6,509   6,253  7,627   28,278

Reduction in reserve requirements applicable to 
Métier transaction  —  —  (882)  —  (882)

 Income from operations  11,109  13,250  12,996  13,057  50,412

Other income, principally interest  615  845  632  1,076  3,168

 Income before income taxes  11,724  14,095  13,628  14,133  53,580

Provision for income taxes   3,347  3,821  2,884  3,190  13,242

 Net income before loss from       

 equity investments  8,377  10,274  10,744  10,943  40,338

Loss / (income) from equity investments  25  22  (13)  0  34

 Net income  $ 8,352 $ 10,252 $ 10,757 $ 10,943 $ 40,304

Earnings per share, diluted (c) $ 0.21 $ 0.25 $ 0.26 $ 0.27 $ 0.99

Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted  40,493  40,638  40,975  41,081  40,797

         

a) As discussed in Note 5, the Company recorded a $1.7 million stock warrant sales incentive as a reduction of revenue during the year 2003. Quarterly breakdown for which is 
listed below

Q1-2003 –  $ (0.1)million

Q2-2003 -  $ 0.1 million

Q3-2003 –  $ 1.6 million

Q4-2003 -  $ 0.1 million  

b) Includes reversals on account of: 

(i) Successful recovery of receivables previously provided for as allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $0.8 million and $0.5 million in the second and third quarter, 
respectively, net of amounts provided for in the first quarter of approximately $0.8 million. 

(ii) Revision of the estimated reserve for various litigation and legal fees due to settlements and other changes in estimates of underlying legal costs of $0.5 million, $0.5 million, $1.7 
million and $0.2 million in the first, second, third and fourth quarter, respectively, including $0.9 million related to Métier transaction in the third quarter.

(iii) Downward revision of the 2002 estimates of bonus compensation of $0.8 million in the first quarter.

c) Earnings per share for the quarter are computed independently and may not equal the earnings per share computed for the total year.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Syntel, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Syntel, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 

the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash fl ows for the year ended December 31, 2004. 

These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

these fi nancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial 

statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 

and disclosures in the fi nancial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi cant 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit 

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial 

position of Syntel, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash fl ows for 

the year ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board (United States), the 

effectiveness of Syntel, Inc.’s internal control over fi nancial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in 

Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 

and our report dated March 3, 2005 expressed an unqualifi ed opinion thereon.

Fort Wayne, Indiana 

March 3, 2005

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Syntel, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Syntel, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 

31, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and cash fl ows for each of the two years 

in the period ended December 31, 2003. These fi nancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audits.    

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial 

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over fi nancial reporting as a basis 

for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit 

also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements, assessing 

the accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall fi nancial statement 

presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the fi nancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated fi nancial position 

of Syntel, Inc. as of December 31, 2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash fl ows for each of the two 

years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Detroit, Michigan

February 20, 2004
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Shareholder Information

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

525 E. Big Beaver Road, Third Floor
Troy, Michigan 48083
Telephone 248/619-2800
Facsimile 248/619-2888

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Jonathan James

Vice President, Global Marketing 
and Investor Relations
Telephone 919/370-7499
jonathan_james@syntelinc.com

CORPORATE WEB SITE

Additional corporate information, as 
well as an electronic copy of this annual 
report and previous year’s reports are 
available at: www.syntelinc.com under the 
INVESTORS section.

STOCK LISTING AND 

TRADING SYMBOL

Syntel’s common stock is traded on the 
NASDAQ National Market. The trading 
symbol is SYNT.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Crowe Chizek and Company LLC
Fort Wayne, Indiana

TRANSFER AGENT

Computershare Investor Services, LLC
P.O. Box A3504
Chicago, Illinois 60690-3504
Telephone 312/588-4990
www.computershare.com

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual shareholders meeting will be 
held at 10 a.m. (Eastern) on Thursday, 
June 2, 2005 at Syntel’s headquarters, 
525 E. Big Beaver Road, Third Floor, Troy, 
Michigan 48083. 
Telephone 248/619-2800.
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Syntel, Inc.
525 E. Big Beaver Road, Third Floor
Troy, Michigan, USA 48083
Telephone 248/619-2800
Facsimile 248/619-2888

www.syntelinc.com

Any shareholder interested in a copy of the company’s 10-K as filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission may obtain it without charge 
by writing to Investor Relations at the company’s headquarters.
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